
MEETING AGENDA 
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 

 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER 

56 CHURCH STREET 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

 
MAY 11, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 

___________ 
 

1. Women’s Lung Health Week Proclamation. 
 

2. Approval of the minutes of the April 27, 2015 regular meeting of the City Council. 
 

3. Consideration:  Resolution awarding the professional services proposal for the Park and Recreation 
master plan development to Lose & Associates and authorize the execution of a contract for same. 
 

4. Consideration:  Resolution approving the conditional use application submitted by Paulette DeGraw for 
the operation of “Cup Food You Pick Up” to be located at 73 Church Street in Crestline Village. 
 

5. Consideration:  Resolution authorizing the execution of the following license agreements with respect to 
the West Montcrest Drive sidewalk construction project: 

a. Robert Bradford and Katie Avery, 12 West Montcrest Drive, 35213 
b. John and Gina F. Thomas, 16 West Montcrest Drive, 35213 
c. John B. and Kerri C. Windle, 14 West Montcrest Drive, 35213 

 
6. Announcement:  The next regular meeting of the City Council is May (TBD), 2015, at 7:00 p.m. in the 

Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. 
 

7. Comments from residents. 
 

8. Adjourn. 



PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, every five minutes, a woman in the United States of America is told 

she has lung cancer; and 

WHEREAS, lung cancer is the number one cancer killer of women in the united 

States of Amex-ica; and 

WHEREAS, the lung cancer death rate in women has almost doubled over the 

past 32 years; and 

WHEREAS, advocacy and increased awareness wiIl result in more and better 

treatment for women with Iung cancer and other lung diseases and will ultimately save 

lives; and 

WHEREAS, LUNG FORCE is the national movement led by the American 

Lung Association, with the mission of rnalxing lung cancer history-uniting women to 

stand together with a collective strength and determination to lead the fight against lung 

cancer and £or lung health. 

Now, Therefore, I, Lawence T. Oden, Mayor of the City of Mountain Broolz, do 

hereby prodaim May 10,2015 through May 16,2015, as 

"Women's Lung ~ea1t.h Week" 

in the City of Mountain BrooIz, and I encourage all residents of Mountain Broolr to 

learn more about the detection and treatment of lung cancer. 

Given under my hand and the City of Mountain 

BrooIz, Alabama, on this 1 l th  day of May, in the year 

of our Lord, 2015, and of the Independence of the 

United States of America, 239th. 

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 



From: Ashley Lyerly [mailto:Ashlev.Lverlv@lunase.ora~ 
Sent: Tuesday, April 14, 2015 6:04 PM 
To: ~~astons~mtnbrook.orq' 
Subject: Proclamation Request: Women's Lung Health Week 

Good Evening, Mr. Gaston - 

As a resident of the City of Mountain Brook and staff member of the American Lung Association, 
I would like Mayor Oden to consider proclaiming that the second week in May is Women's Lung 
Health Week as part of our LUNGFORCE initiative. LUNGFORCEis a strategic campaign to 
raise awareness about lung cancer in women. 

We have draft language for Mayor Oden to consider as part of the proclamation, which I have 
listed below. Many organizations across Alabama have recognized the importance of lung 
cancer as it has become the leading cancer killer in women. Mayor Oden's proclamation will 
strategically help to reduce the stigma associated with lung cancer through increased 
community awareness. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to outreach to me by email, office phone, or by 
cell phone J205-913-4760). 

Sincerely, 
Ashley Lyerly 

DRAFT PROCLAMATION LANGUAGE 
The Second Full Week in May is 
Women's Lung Health Week 
Proclamation 
Designating the second full week in May as "Women's Lung Health Week" 
WHEREAS, every five minutes, a woman in the U.S. is told she has lung cancer; and 
WHEREAS, lung cancer is the #1 cancer killer of women in the US.; and 
WHEREAS, the lung cancer death rate in women has almost doubled over the past 37 years; 
and 
WHEREAS, advocacy and increased awareness will result in more and better treatment for 
women with lung cancer and other lung diseases and will ultimately save lives; and 
WHEREAS, LUNG FORCE is the national movement led by the American Lung Association, 
with the mission of making lung cancer history-uniting women to stand together with a 
collective strength and determination to lead the fight against lung cancer and for lung health. 
BE IT RESOLVED, that, I, Mayor Lawrence Terry Oden, Mayor of the City of Mountain Brook, 
do hereby designate the second full week in May as Women's Lung Health Week throughout 
the City of Mountain Brook and encourage all residents of Mountain Brook to learn more about 
the detection and treatment of lung cancer. 

Ashley Lyerly, MPA I Director of Public Policy 
American Lung Association in Alabama 
P.O. Box 661465 1 Birmingham, AL 35266 



Minute Book 87 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

APRIL 27,2015 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A106) of City Hall at 6:00 p.m. on Monday, the 27th day of April. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Carl Johnson, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

1. AGENDA 

1. Hunter Simmons, GIs Manager, was introduced to the elected officials. 

2. Selection of consultant for Parks & Recreation master plan (Appendix 1). 

It was the general consensus of the members of the City Council that Lose & Associates will be 
considered for selection to perform the study. Members of the City Council expressed concern about 
the scope of the master plan study. The City Manager will distribute the request for proposal to the 
governing body which describes the intended scope (Lose & Associates option 3) of the project. The 
terms of the proposed agreement will be further studied by management and City Attorney. This 
matter will be considered again at the May 1 1,201 5 meeting of the City Council. 

3. Ms. Kathy Thomson to address the City Council concerning leaf blowers (Appendix 2). 

Ms. Thomson suggested that the Council consider tightening the restrictions on commercial operators 
in order to reduce the noise pollution from commercial lawn equipment (namely gasoline-powered 
leaf blowers). Suggestions include increasing the restricted time period (currently 6 p.m. until 7 a.m. 
weekdays and 6 p.m. until 8 a.m. on weekends pursuant to Ordinance No. 1906 adopted June 23, 
2014) for commercial landscape service providers, requiring the use of newer, quieter power 
equipment, and restricting the number of simultaneous operators. It was the consensus of the 
members of the City Council that another mail-out be distributed to commercial operators informing 
them that the noise issue has not be resolved and that further restrictions are being considered. This 
matter will be reviewed again at a later date. 

4. Fencing around equipmentlcell tower area behind police station (Appendix 3). Further study of 
options intended to reduce the noise will be evaluated. This matter will be considered by the City 
Council again at a later date. 

5. Change-order for Cahaba River Walk-Nimrod Long. Motion 201 5-061 was added to the formal 
meeting agenda. A change-order will be delivered to the City Manager for execution upon its 
completion. 

6. Fiscal year 2016 budget schedule and set date for Mayor and Council budget planning work session- 
Sam Gaston. The initial planning meeting was set for Wednesday, May 20,2015 at 7:30 a.m. in 
Room A23 1 (Training Room). 

April 27.2015 



Minute Book 86 

7. Review of the formal [7 p.m.] agenda issues. [Note: The conditions of Resolution No. 201 5-060 were 
discussed and formalized for incorporation in said resolution.] 

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION AND ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, it was moved by Council President 
Pro Tempore Pritchard that the City Council convene in executive session to discuss a matter involving a real 
estate matter. The motion was seconded by Council President Smith. The City Attorney certified that the 
subject matter of the executive session is allowed pursuant to the Open Meetings Act. Then, upon the question 
being put and the roll called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith declared that the motion canied by a vote of 5-0 and then asked that the 
members of the audience be excused. She also announced that the City Council shall convene in the Council 
Chamber at approximately 7 p.m. upon conclusion of the executive session. 

City Clerk 

April 27,2015 



Minute Book 87 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

APRIL 27,2015 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 27th day of April, 2015. The Council President called the 
meetings to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempom 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Carl Johnson, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

The City Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business. 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on the 
consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the April 13,201 5 regular meeting of the City Council. 

2015-058 Authorize the City's participation in the 2015 "Back-to-School" Exhibit I 
Sales Tax Holiday, beginning at 12:Ol a.m. on Friday, August Appendix I 
7,201 5, and ending at twelve midnight on Sunday, August 9, 
2015, whereby the City of Mountain Brook will exempt certain 
school supplies, computers, and clothing from municipal sales 
or use tax in conformance with the time period, terms and 
conditions, and definitions as provided for the "State of 
Alabama Sales Tax Holiday" 

2015-059 1) declare a 2008 model postage machine obsolete, declaring it Exhibit 2 
surplus, and authorizing it trade-in, and 2) authorize the Appendix 2 
execution of a lease agreement between the City and Secap 
Financial (subsidiary of Pitney Bowes Global Financial 
Services, LLC) with respect to City's lease of a Pitney Bowes 
Connect -1-500W Mailing System 

2015-060 Approve the conditional [service] use application submitted by Exhibit 3 
James Lee to allow yoga classes (dba\ mountainbrook.yoga) at Appendix 3 
2414 Canterbury Road in Mountain Brook Village [Local 
Business], subject to specified conditions. 

2015-061 Approve Cahaba River Walk change-order 
Motion 

Appendix 4 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes, resolutions, and motion were introduced by Council President 
Smith and their immediate adoption was moved by Council member Womack. The minutes, resolutions, and 

J:\Minutes & Apcnd~s\CouncilKOt5UOlS0427 Minutes.doc April 27,20 IS 



144 Minute Book 86 

motion were then considered by the City Council. Council President Pro-Tempore f ritchard seconded the 
motion to adopt the foregoing minutes, resolutions, and motion. Then, upon the question being put and the roll 
called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, Ill, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said minutes, Resolution Nos. 2015-058 through 
201 5-060, and Motion No. 201 5-061 are adopted by a vote of 5 4 .  

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS REGARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

Council President Smith announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook City Council will be 
held on Monday, May 1 1,2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213. Please visit the City's web site (www.mtnbrook.or~) for more information. 

3. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, President Smith adjourned the 
meeting. 

City Clerk 

EXHIBIT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-058 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that pursuant to 
Act No. 2006-574, beginning at 12:01 a.m. on Friday, August 7,2015, and ending at twelve midnight on 
Sunday, August 9,2015, the City of Mountain Brook will exempt certain school supplies, computers, and 
clothing from municipal sales or use tax. Said sales and use tax exemption shall conform with respect to the 
time period, terms and conditions, and definitions as provided for the "State of Alabama Sales Tax Holiday". 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
the City Clerk is hereby instructed to send a certified copy of this resolution to the Alabama Department of 
Revenue, Attention: Wanda Robbins, Room 43 11, Sales, Use & Business Tax Division, Post Ofice Box 
327900, Montgomery, Alabama 36132-7900 as required by Sales Tax Holiday Rule 810-6-3-.65 and Code of 
Alabama 1975,s 1 1-5 1-21 O(e). 

APPENDIX 1 

EXHIBIT 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015059 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain items of personal property which are 
no longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 



RJZSOLUTION NO. 2015-063 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that the City 
Council hereby accepts the professional services proposal submitted by Lose & Associates, Inc., with 
respect to the master plan study and development for the Parks and Recreation Board of the City of 
Mountain Brook. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that the 
Mayor or the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the City, to 
execute a professional services agreement between the City and Lose & Associates, Inc., in the form as 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, with respect to said Parks and Recreation Board master plan project. 

ADOPTED: This 1 I th day of May, 20 15. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 1 1 th day of May, 201 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on May 11,2015, as same appears in the minutes of record of 
said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Lose & Associates Park Board Master Plan Study & Preparation 



Agreement - City of Mt. Brook & Lose - Comprehensive Park Master Plan 
Steve Stine csstineQ bishopcolvin.com~ 958 AM (4 hours ago) 

to Chris, Sam, Shanda, me, Marla 

Images are not displayed.Display images below - Always display images from 
sstineb bishopcolvin.com 

Chris, thank you again Tor scnding mc thc cdirahlc vcrsion of Losc & Assclciatcs' proposed Agrccmcnt l i ~ r  thc 
ahovc projcct. 

Wc havc rcvicwcd LCISC'S dfali, and matlc snmc changcs to il li>r i t  to bc consislenl with prot'cssional scrvicc 
agrccmcnts that thc Mt. Brook City Council has acccptcd in tlic past. Attachcd i s  a rcviscd vcrsion o l  thc 
Agrccmcnt (ttic May 6 Version), and a rcd-lincd version thal shows Lhe changes wc made lo Losc's lirsl 
dral'i. I t  i s  inlcndcd that the following two docurncnts bc auichcd to thc rcviscd vcrsion: ( i )  Attechmcnl A - 
Hourly Ratc Schcdulc for any Additii~nal Scrviccs; and (ii) Attachment B - the lcttcr and Scope oT Scrviccs 
that you scnt the City when you rcspondcd to thc City's rcqucsl for pmposals. (I also have auachcd this 
Attachment B.) 

In  your I'irst drali, Lose proposcd that i ts  liability 10 the City Lilr any claim arising out of your work he limitcd 
to $50,MlO. Thc City docs not agrcc to thcsc typc ol' limitalions. Howcvcr, wc have addrcsscd your rcqucst for 
a Limitation ol' Liability in thc following manncr. Wc havc nddcd an Insurance Rctluircmcnt li)r Losc to 
prnvidc ro~nprchcnsivc general, i i u t ~ ~ n o b i l ~  and profc~~ionitl liability insurancc with minimum limits o l  
$500,01K) for cach ol' tliosc policics (scc pagc 5):  wc cxpecl that you already havc insurance with at ]cast thcsc 
limits. As statcd on pdgc 4 of vcrsion 2 of thc Ayrccmcnt, l i ~ r  this undcrluking only, I havc included languagc 
lo limil Losc's linhili~y lor claims hy thc City 10 $500,000 (thc tnininlum imount of insurancc that you arc 
required lo furnish). I think this is  a vcry rcasonahlc approach lo addressing this clucslion. 

Plcasc advise mc and Mr. Gaston i f  Losc accepts the attached May G vcrsion of the Agrccmcnt. II'so, plcasc 
sign i t  and rcturn thc cxccutcd vcrsioti to Mr. Gaston, and he will ask the Cily Council to approve it at i ts  
mccting on Mondi~y night (May I I ). Wc nccd to linolizc this in ~ h c  ncxl 24 hours in order tbr this lo hc 
considcrcll by ttic City Council l l i i s  upcoming Monday. 

Do not hcsikatc to  convict mc or Mr. Gaston if you llavc any qucslions. 

Steve Stine 
1910 First Avenue North 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 
Phone : 1205) 251-2881 
Fax : 1205) 254-3987 
Email: sstine@bishopcolvin.com 

From: Steve Stine [mailto:sstine@bishoacolvin.comJ 
Sent: Tuesday, April 28, 2015 11:29 AM 
To: 'Sam Gaston'; 'Chris Camp' 
Cc: 'Carl Johnson' 
Subject: RE: Attached Image - Agreement - City of Mt. Brook & Lose 

Chris, I am one of the attorneys for the firm that represents the City of Mt. Brook. Could you please send me 
the form of the contract & proposal that you sent to Mr. Gaston yesterday in Word form so I can edit it? As 



Sam has noted, we are going to suggest some changes to your proposed terms. If I can get your first draft in 
Word, I can track and later show you proposed changes. 

Thanks in advance for your help on this. 

Steve Stine 
1910 First Avenue North 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 
Phone : 1205) 251-2881 
Fax : 1205) 254-3987 
Email: sstineCbisho~colvin.com 

From: Sam Gaston [maiIto:sastons@mtnbrook.orq] 
Sent: Tuesday, April 28, 2015 8: 12 AM 
To: Chris Camp 
Cc: Carl Johnson; sstine@bishorxolvin.com 
Subject: RE: Attached Image 

Chris, 
Our City Council would like several changes to the contract in order to consider it at their next 
Council meeting on May I lth. 
Our City Attorneys will be in contact with you about these revisions. 

Sam S.Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook, AL. 
56 Church Street 
P.O. Box 1 30009 
Mountain Brook AL. 3521 3 
12051 802-3803 Phone 
12051 870-3577 Fax 

From: Chris Camp [maiIto:ccame~loseassoc.corn] 
Sent: Monday, April 27, 2015 8:40 AM 
To: Sam Gaston 
Subjeet: Re: Attached Image 

Sam 
Hcrc is  ctlnlracl as rcclucstcd. 
Chris 

Celebrating our 31st Anniversary 



Check Us Out1 
Loseassoc.com 
facebook.com/loseassoc 
twitter.com/ loseassoc 

l'l<IVILIIGl'.I) AND CONlfI13EN?'IAI,: This clcclroriic ~nc\s,~gc ,11111 ; I I I ~  ; I ~ ~ ; I ~ I I F I I C ' I I I S  i11.d ~ 0 1 1 l i i 1 ~ i i t i ; ~ I  1>1.011cr.t> 
i l l '  I..C)SF, "4 ASSOCIA'TI'S. INC. l'llc ilil'ornlalinn is ili('~i~I~'d 0111) 101. 111~- iisc of'11ic j~crson 10 ivlio~ii i f  i\ 
ailtfrcsscil. tiny otl~c't' ii~icrccl~~ion, ~'opyil~g. ; I C C V S S ~ I I ~ .  or d i \~ lo \ i~ r i~  ol'tl~i\ I ~ I L ~ S S : ~ ~ L '  is 11roI~il~i~~~1. It'>oi~ ll;iic 
scc,ci~cd lllis mcssilgc in cn-or. ~>lcarc i~i~nictli;~rcly ~ l o t i l )  I.OSt; h: ASSOCIATIIS. INC.. and purge 1111. 
~iic\s;~gc rcc~i\~ctI. lh )  11ot  li~~.iv;~r.J 111is IIICSS;I~C i t  i t l ~ t \ i ~ i  pC~.~ l i i+~ i t~~i .  

On Fri, Apr 24, 2015 at 1 1: 18 AM, Sam Goston cgaslans@mtnhn)ok.q> wrtllc: 
We are taking your proposal to the City Council on Monday night. Do you have a contract for this 
proposal that you can email me? 

Sam S.Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook, AL. 
56 Church Street 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook AL. 3521 3 
(205) 802-3803 Phone 
1205) 870-3577 Fax 

From: Chris Camp [mailto:ccam~bloseasxrc.com~ 
Sent: Wednesday, April 15, 2015 4:00 PM 
To: Sam Gaston 
Subject: Fwd: Attached Image 

Sam 
Hcrc is thc rcviscd scopc with Mary Hcndcrson hack in khc projcct. Plcasc Ict rnc know if you nccd any 
additional information. 
Chris 

Chris C;unp. ASI,,i 
I'rcsidcnt 
i.osc Jk t~ssoci;~tr.s, Ii~c. 
13 14 5111 Avc, North 
N:~slivillr. '1'rnnc.ssec. 37208 
61 5-242-0040 ( p j 
615-242-1405 111 
61 5-390-4366 cell 

Celebrating our 31st Anniversary 



-,-a- 

Formatted: Font: Mal, I2 pt 
Project: Mountain Brook Comprehensive Park Lose & Associates, .I4235 

And Recreation Mastcr Plan Inc. - Project NO: 
Formatted: Font: Not Bold 

Client: City of Mountain Brook, Alabama Date: April 27,2015 .- - - . krmatted tabk 
PO Box 13009 

1 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook. AL 35213 

Services: Lose 8 Associates, Inc. (the "Design Professional.") is hereby contracted to provide 
the following services as authorized by you, set forth in this Professional Services Agreement (the 
"Agreement") for the Client. 

SeeThe Agreement includes and incorporates (a) the Terms and Conditions outlined on the* 
following pages; (bk Attachment A; and (c) Atlachment B - the April 15.2015 letter and proposal - - . 
setting forth the scope of services (the "Scope of Services"). , - - .. 

Fees: 

$67,580.00' 
Lump Sum feeFee of - -  - - - m a t t e d :  N ~ I ,  unc spadrq: ~ x a c t ~ y  12 

Dt Tab stom: 1'. LeR + 4.5". Left 

Other Conditions: 'The lump sum feeLump Sum Feo quoted above includes the cost of anyall 
out-of-pocket reimbursable expenses. (including. but not limited to, transportation, lodging, meals, 
printing, copies, long distance or other communication charges, postage or delivery expense, 
preparation of media or presentations, or other expenses associated with the Project) 

Terms and Conditions outlined on the following three pages are a part of this Agreement. 
Signature by the Client parties below indicates the Client's agreement with the proposed Services, 
Fees, and Terms and Conditions as set forth in this Professional Servicesof both that the Project 
be performed by the Design Professional in accordance wlth the terms of this Agreement. 

ACCEPTED: This, day of ,2015 ISSUED: This 27h day of Aprh 2015 

LOSE & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

By: 
Sionature Authorized Representative 

By: 
Signature Authorized Representative 

hloitntafn Brook Park and Rec ~ a s t e r ' ~ l a n  
April 27. 20 15 

- 
Page 1 oi 1 1 
LA ri4235 

I4rshvlllc Office: 1314 5th AMnuc tbrth. Suite ZOO l4alvllle. Tcnncswr 17208 . Phone: 615.242-OMO. Fdx: 615.242 1405 
Allanla Offlcc: 220 W Crogan Slrcct. Sulm I W  . Lavrrencenllc. Gwrg~r 30046. Phonc: 770.318.0017. Fa*: 770.338.0397 
,. . . . . - - . .  .!,, .: - . . . . .  

. .  - , . T '  - - '  ' - 
. . ,. - . .  . . . .., . . - .  * 



LOSE 
&ASSOClATEB, INC. 
mtmm .mmthM.-.wrC 

.Chris Camp . . - -( Formatted: Undailne 1 
Client's signature President 

Print Name .- - - . Formatted: Headng 1, Une spacing: W y  
12 Dt -- 7 - 

- '- 
Formatted: Font: Mal,  Not sdd 

lk  Its: 
Title 

hlounfain B r w k  Park and Rec &faster Plln 
April 27. 20 15 

tlnshvillc offlcc 1114 5th Awnu' tbrth Sunc ZM Halh.,illc Tcnnrsscc 37208 . Phonc 615 2-12 oo-la - Fax 615 ZJ2.105 
ArldnlaOfllce 220 W Crogan Slrwl SulW 100. Lai~.~cncc:llc. Gcorqla 300Jb PI onc 770 338 0017 - Fax. 770.338 0397 



Title 

Date: Date: 

*-  - - Formamb: Hcad(ng 1, Une spadng: fxac(ly 
12 Pt 

!.lor~nt,gin Brwh Park and Rcc blaster Plan 
April 27. 20 15 

Il~%hvlllc O f i ~ c c :  1314 5th Avenuc t b r t h  Suilc ?M . I~AJIVIIIC. Tcnnc~xc 37208 - Phone 615 242 aWO . Fax 615 24:.145 
Atlanta Ollicc. 220 W Croqan Strrxt,  SUIW I00 - iavncnccvillc Gcorg~a MO4b + Phone 770.318 M I 7  + Fax. ??0 338 0397 



LOSE =~~!Ei&EE,"~ --- 
,TERMS AND CONDITIONS, - - ~ o r r n a t t d  Font: Mal, 12 pt 

= _ 1 
Ikrmnlted: Font: I2 pt 

Project Schedule - As set forth in the attached Scope of Services, the parties anticipate that the Design 1 
Professional's services will be performed over a twenty-one (21) week period after it commences work. 
1 krmrmd: Slyk llme5 New Roman 10 pt 
Payment Scheduie end Terms - Progress payments for the leesFee described previously willmay be w, Font: Mal, 12 pt, ~ o t  ~ d d  
dueinvoiced monthly, by the Design Professional based on the Design Professional'sits estimale of the 
percentage of the wrk complete. If payment is not received by the Design Professional With each invoice 
the Deslgn Prolessional shall include sufficient information that reasonably describes the work completed 
during that billing period. Client will pay all properly supported invdces for work successfully completed 
within thirty (30 calendar) days of the invoice date, the Clienl shall pay as interest an addilional charge of 
1.5% of the past due amount per month. Payment thereafter shall first be applied to accrued interest and 
then to the unpaid principal. Failurefollowing submission. The Client's faliure to make payments when due 
shali be cause lor suspension of lhe Design Professional's services, and the filing o l  a lien against the 
property. 

Current Hourly Rates - An attached table- Attachment A, dated January 1, 2015, outlines ourthe Design 
Professionai's current hourly rates and reimbursable expenses rates. These rates are current unlil January 
1, 2016, at which time they may be adjusted by the Design Professional. These rates will be utilized and 
apply only if (a) additional services other than those contemplatad in the Scope of Services are performed 
VAdditional Services") and (b) the Client approves the performance of such Additional Services in advance 
in writing. 

Additional Services - Only items of work specifically calledset out underin the Scope ot Services section 
of this Agreement are to be performed for the specified Fees. The Design Professionai will consider the 
performance of any items not so specified as 'Additional Services", and, unless otherwise agreed, will 
perform those services upon request on an hourly fee basis as outlined on the attached Hourly Rate 
Schedule. If any Additional Services are requested, the Design Professionai shall be reimbursed for 
associated out-of-pocket expenses as reflected on the anached Hourly Rate Schedule. 

Term of Proposal - It is understood that this document outlines the proposed S e ~ c e s  and Fees toare be 
provided in relation to the Client's projectProiect, and that thisthe Design Professional's offer of proposed 
Services and Fees rematns open for sixty (60) days from the date this document is issued.stated above. If 
the Client does not indicate acceptance by signing and returning one copy to the Design Professionaiparties 
do not enter into a conlract within sixty d&, This document be&mesprdposal shall bicome null and vold. 

A - - . Formatted: Font Not Bold 
Fee Adjustment - It is understood that in the event this project extends over a period of more than one 

I 
year from the date of this Agreement, the fees for any remaining services will be adjusted proporlionately to 
the 'all iternr group of the U.S. Department of Laboh Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer index. 

Ownerehip of Oocumenla - All reports, plans, specifications, computer files, field data, notes and other 
documents and instrurnenls prepared by the Design Professional as instrumenls(th8 "Instruments of 
s e ~ c e S e ~ c e " )  shall remain the property ofbe Iointly owned by the Client and Design Professional. The 
Instruments of Sewices may be distribuled to third parties or otherwise used at the discretion of either party. 
,The Design Professional shall retaln ail common law, statutory and other resewed rights, including , , - ~ormancd: Default Paragraph ~ m t  

theconsents to sharing of sucQcopyright thereto. Reuse for , proprietary (intellectual or otherwise) rights, .. . mtl& k h u l t  Paragraph ~ m t  
titles and Interests with the Client as aforesaid free from lien or encumbrance. Ciient and Design 
Professional shaii each have the right to apply for copyright registration and future renewals o r g ~ l 8 n s i o n s  ,. . - -( bmmttd  Default Paragraph Font 3 
of the project or for new projects shall require written permission of the Design Professionai end further 
compensation at a rate agreed upon by both parties. Any changes made to the construction documents fry 
the Client, or by the CilenCs representatives, are strictly prohibited without the knowledge and written 

bfotmt;iin Brooli Park and Rec blaster Plan 
Apr1127, 201 5 

Page 4 of 1 1  
LA U 14235 

t4arhdlle Office 1114 5th Avcnuc North S w k  200 . Ilarhvlllc, Tcnnesrc 37208 - Phom. 6 1 5 - 2 4 2 a 0 .  Fa* 615 212 1405 
Atlanta Ofiicc. 220 W Ctqlsn Strcel. Sure  IM) Lawrencarillc. h r q l a  M M 6  . Phonc: 770-338-0017 . Fan 770 338 0397 

. " 



LOSE 
GASSOCIATES, INC. 
L Y O Y . n ~ . u n m c m m . v ~ . M l c  

-LOIY*OCsp. 

consent of the copyright terms as joint owners, and the right to sue for copyright infringement, each at its 
own expense. 

The Design Professional may use the lnstruments for any and all purposes that are reasonably related to its 
commercial enterprises. Specifically, thepesign Professional. may reuse elements of the lnstruments . , - {h-tted: D ~ ~ U L  pamgaph h t  
of Senrice on other projects, provided that the reused aesthetic design or a major element of shall not 

1 
Infringe the copyright in the original work created in connection with the Project, T h e  Design - -  onru rut tad: Deraurpmpraph h t  
PfofeS~iorlal shall be released from any liability resulting from the unauthorized alteration of construction 
documents. The Design Professional also may use the Instruments of Service for advertising and promotion 
when such use is approved in writing by the Client, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
Further, the Design Prolessional grants the Client the right to use the drawings, plans and other lnstruments 
for theirits use in publications, public meetings, planning efforts, and award submittals, and the right to 
reproduce the drawingdrawings, plans or other lnstruments as needed for slated uses without requesting 
authorization from the Design Professional. 
* 
Jobsita Safety -The Design Professional is not responsible for job sile safety during the master planning .. 

spadng! Tab *ps: process. The owner retains sole responsibility and liability associated with securing the site and maintaining 
job sile safety during the planning process. 

The Client acknowledges that (a) the Design Professional has prepared the lnstruments solely for this 
Project, and that it does not represent, and specifically disclaims any warranty (express or implied), 
concerning the feasibility or appropriateness of using the lnstruments for any purpose other than the 
implementation of the Project addressed in this Agreement, (ii) the Design Professional shall not be 
responsible to the Client regarding the use or workability ot such lnstruments of Service in connection with 
any project other than the Project contemplated herein, and (iii) the Client shall release the Design 
Professional and Its consultants from any claims, causes of actions, expenses or loss arising from the use 
of the lnstruments on other projects. 

Safely - If the Design Professional or its agents, employees or representatives inspect or perform 
operations on Client property (a 'Project Site"), the following understandings apply: (a) the Design 
Professional has inspected, or will have inspected the Project Site, before commencing its services; (b) the 
Design Professionar has the sole responsibility to identify any condition, hazard or defect on a Project Site 
that will prevent it from safely performing its services; and (c) the Client makes no representation or 
warranty that a Project is safe, free from latent or patent defects, or fit for the purposes intended by the 
Design Professional. 

Applicable Law - Unless otherwise provided, thislhis Agreement shall be governed by Tennessee 
statethe law of the State ol Alabama. 

Disputes Resolution - All claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in question between the 
parties hereto arising out of or relating to this Agreement or breach thereof shall be presented to none 
binding mediation, subject to the parties agreeing to a mediator. 

Dispute Resolution - The respective representatives of the parties who will administer this Agreement will 
use thelr good falth eflorts to resolve any dispute or claim between them arising from the performance or 
failure to perlorm their respective obligations hereunder (a 'Dispute"). in the event that those 
representatives are unable to amicably resolve a Dispute, It will be escalated to the senior manager/official 
level of each party lor consideration. If the Dispute cannot be resolved at the senror official level, either 
party may request that the Dispute be mediated. However, if the parties are unable to amicaMy resolve 
any Dispute, the dispute resolution mechanism shall be litigation in a court that is located in Jefferson 
County, Alabama. If (i) either party should employ attorneys or incur other expenses In any legal action 
regarding a Dispute, and (ii) one party secures a final iudgrnent before a court of competent jurisdiction or 
obtains other relief from an adrnintstrative body related thereto against the other party, the losing party will 
b h wk rkanc RecA - 'an ago - 
Aprrl 27. 20 15 LA # r 4235 

Illlhbillc OHICC: 1114 5th Avcnw t&rch. 5mtr 2M tlarhvllle. Tcnncrlcf 37ZOB Phonc. 615 742-OM0 Fax 615 242.1405 
Arlanlb Office' 220 W Crcqan Strccl. SulLo loO Lawrcnccvltlc. Gmrqta 3W46 r Phonc: 770.318 W17 . Fax 770 338 0397 



&ASSOCIATES, INC. 
- 4 C M . - - - . -  - w 

pay the prevailing party its reasonable attorneys' fees and other reasonable expenses that are incurred in 
that action. 

TermlEarly Termination of Services -.,This Agreement will become effective on the date last executed - bnnattetl: style nmcr New m a n  10 pt 
above by a party. Therealter, it shall continue In effect for a period of one (1) year or the Design ~ d d  
Professional's successful completion of its services on the Project, whichever occurs first (the "Term"). 
Notwithstanding the provision immediately above or any other provision herein this Agreement Jnay be - . - - ( m a w :  ~chub~aragraph  ant 
terminated by either party upon not less thanbefore the expiration of its Term on the occurrence of any of 

1 
the following: 

(a) Terminatlon for Cause by Client. If the Design Professional fails to perform any 
material obligation in this Agreement (a 'Default"), the Client may terminate this 
Agreement for cause 01 seven (7) daysdays' advance, written notice should the Formatted: Mfault Paragraph  ant 1 
other party fail to perform substantially in accordance with the t e n s  of this - m a t t e d :  Default Paragraph font 
Agreement through no fault of the party initiatingto the Design Professional; 1 
provided that the Design Professional shall be provided an opportunity during that 
period to cure or corred any deficiency in performance that is the basis of the 
proposeQlermination. for cause. The failure of the Design Professional to timely .. - krmattal: ~cfault kragraph h t  1 
and diligently perform its services shall be considered an event of Default. Thts 
termination remedy is in addition to any other remedy or right provided to the Client 
in this Agreement or available by law that arises from a Default; 

(b) Termination for Cause by Design Professional. If the Client fails to perform a 
material obligation in this Agreement, the Design Professional may terminate the 
Agreement for cause on thirty (30) days' advance written notice to the Ubrary; 
provided that the Client shall be provided an opportunity during that period to cure 
or correct any deficiency in performance that is the basis of the proposed 
termination for cause. The Client's failure to make payments when due shall be an 
event of Default; and 

(c) Termination for Convenience by Cllent. At its convenience and without the 
occurrence or declaration of a Default, the Client may terminate the Agreement 
without cause on twenty (20) days' advance written notice to the Design 
ProfesJonaL 

If this Agreement is terminated by the Client, the Design Professional shall be paid lor services tor its 
convenience, Is terminated by the Design Professional for cause, or the perlormance of services is 
suspended for Client's failure to make payments, the Deslgn Professional agrees that its sde and exclusive 
remedy for any such termination or suspension shal be the payment for services it has performed up to the 
termination notice date, including reimbursable expenses due plus termination expenses. Termination 
expenses are defined as reimbursable expenses directly attributable to termination, plus 15 percent of the 
total compensation earned to or the time of termination to account for the Design Professional'ssuspension 
in relation to the point in  the Project at which such termination or suspension has occurred. Additionally, if 
the Design Professional has suspended ils services due to the Client's failure to make timely payments 
hereunder, the Design Prafessional, as a condition to resuming its services, may request the Client to pay a 
mutually-agreed amount for rescheduling adjustments, reassignment of personnel, and related costs 
incurred due to remobilization that arose from the termination.suspension of se~ces., 

OpinIon of Probable Cod - In providing opinions oflf the Design Professional provides the Client an 
opinion on probable construction costcosts related to the Project, the Client understands that the Design 
Professional has no control over costs or the price of labor, equipment, or malerlals, or over the contractor's 
method of pricing, and that the opinions of probable construction costs provided are to be made on the 

Alor~nwin Brnuh Park and Rcc hbster Plan 
April 27, 20 15 

-( ~0nnam D~SUL paragraph ~ o n t  1 

lrr%hvlllc Ofllcc: 1314 5th  Avcnuc North Srntc ZM . IJalhl -  le Tcnecirc 37208 . P i - r r  615 :a2 OM0 . Fax 615 >4: 1105 
A!fdnla (IHIcc. 2.0 W Crogan Street. Sulte IW . iavncnccnl'c I : m g l a  MM6. Phonr. 77f 338 0017 Fax. TI!: 338 :: !9 :  



LOSE 
&ASSOCIATES, INC. 
n & . m L - ~ u a m m a . - o u . r r - . * u r C  

rrr-- 

basis of the Design Prole8slonal's quallficalkns and experience, The Design Professional makes no 
warranty, expressed or impled, as to the accuracy of such oplinions as compared to bld or actual costs. 

UmitLlmitatlon of LiabilttylExcluaion of Consequential Damages - In recognition of the relative risks 
and benefits of the projectProject to both the Client and the Design Prolesslonal, the risks associated or 
arising from the perlormance of this Agreement have been al:ocated such that as follows: 

(a) the Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the Rabllity of Ihe Design*- - - 
Professional and its subconsultants to the Qrent for any and ari cla?rns, losses, costs, damages of ~umbaing st@: a, 4 C, ... +start at: 1 + 
any nature whatsoever or claims end expenses from any such cause or causes, so that the total 
aggregate liability of the Design Professional and Its subconsullants to all those named shall not 
exceed $50,000 or the Design Professional's total fee for services rendered on this project, 
whichever is lesser. Such claims and causes lndude (including, but are not limited to, negligence, 
professional errors or omissions, strict Ilability, breach of contract or warranty. ) to $500,000 (the 
limits of the comprehensive liability, automobile and professional liabilitycoverage required herein). 
A 

In addition, the Client agrees to indemnify and hold the Design Professional harmless for any damage, 
liability or cost, Including reasonabbe attorney's fees and defense costs, arislng from any errors or omissions 
contained in the plans, spezifications or other contract documents prepared by others. The Client agrees to 
extend any and all liability Inmitations and indemnlfications provided by the Client to the Design Professional 
to those individuals and entties the Destgn Professional retains for performance of the services under this 
Agreement, including but not limited to the Design Professional's subconsultants and their officers, 
employees, heirs and assigns. 

It is Intended that this limitation apply to any and all Rabilky or cause of actlon however alleged or arising, 
unless otherwise prohibited by law. 

Betterment If, due to the Design Professlonal's error, any required item or component of the project is 
omitted from Ihe Design Professional's construction documents, the Design Professional shall not be 
responsible for paying the cost to add such item or component to the extent that such item or component 
would have been otherwise necessary to the project or otherwise adds value or betterment to the project. In 
no event will the Design Professional be responslbte for any cost or expense that pro~des betterment, 
upgrade or enhancement ol the project. 

Contrad termination - Upon giving the other party five (5) calendar days prior written notice, this 
Agreement may be terminated by either party in the event of substantial failure to perform in accordance 
with the terms hereof by the other party through no fault of the terminating party. If thls agreement Is so 
terminated, the Design Professional shall be paid for all services rendered and all costs incurred up to the 
date of termination, in accordance with the compensation provisions of thls contract. The Cllent shall pay 
the Design Professional in full within ten (10) calendar days of termination. 

(b) NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION IN THlS AGREEMENT, THE DESIGN 
PROFESSIONAL AGREES THAT, IN THE EVENT IT MAKES ANY CLAIM, DEMAND OR ACTION 
OF ANY TYPE AGAINST THE CLIENT ARISING FROM ITS BREACH OR ALLEGED BREACH OF 
THlS AGREEMENT OR ITS FAILURE TO PERFORM ANY OF ITS OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, 
THE MAXIMUM AMOUNT THAT THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL MAY RECOVER FROM THE 
CLIENT AS DAMAGES IN ANY SUCH ACTION IS LIMITED TO THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL'S 
ACTUAL, DIRECT DAMAGES ARISING FROM THE CLIENTS BREACH, THE DESIGN 
PROFESSIONAL AGREES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE COMMERCIAL TERMS HEREIN 
WERE PROPOSED AND BASED ON THE ASSUMPTION THAT THlS SPECIFIC LIMITATION IS 
APPLICABLE, AND THAT OWNER WOULD NOT HAVE ENTERED INTO THlS AGREEMENT 
WITHOUT THE INCLUSION OF THIS LIMITATION. IN NO EVENT WILL THE CLIENT BE 
LIABLE TO THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, 
CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, RELIANCE OR SPECIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING WITHOUT 

Alounmin Brmh Park nnd Rec Blasler Plan 
Aprrl 27. 20 15 

Page 7 01 1 7 
W # 1423.5 

N~shvi l lc Office 1114 5th Avcnu: tbrth Sulic 200 . Nashville. fcnmrscc 37208 . Phone 615 242 M I O .  Fa*. 615 212 1405 
Atlanta Oilicc ?20 W Crogan Strcct, S u l k  100. Lavzrcnccmllc, Gmrqla 30046 .  Phone 710 118 M t 7  . Far 770 338 0397 



LOSE 
GASSOC1AtES INC. ---.--.,.A*- --- 

LIMITATION DAMAGES FOR LOST PROFITS. LOST ADVANTAGE, LOST OPPORTUNITY, 
LOSS OF SAVINGS OR REVENUES OR FOR tNCREASED COST OF OPERATIONS) ARISING 
FROM ANY BREACH OR ALLEGED BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT BY THE CLIENT. 

Betterment - Intentionally Deteled. NIA to this Project. 

Contract Termination -See TermlEarly Termination Section above. 

Insurance Requirements - For the duration of the Agreement and for limils not less than stated below, the 
Design Professional shall maintain the following insurance with a company(ies) lawfully authorized to do 
business in Alabama and reasonably acceptable to the Client: 

(a) Comprehensive General Uability: Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (5500,000); 

(b) Automobile Liability: Automobile Liability covering owned and rented vehicles operated by the 
Design Professional with policy limits of not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,W0) 
combined single limit and aggregate for bodily injury and property damage; 

(c) Workers Compensation: Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability as required by 
slatute; and 

(dl Professional Liability: Professional Liability covering the Design Professional's negligent acls. 
eriors and omissions in its performance of pro~essiona~services Gth policy Ilmits of n i t  iess than 
Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (S500.000) per clatrn and in the aggregate. 

The Design Prolessional may use umbrella or excess liability insurance to achleve the requlred coverage 
for Comprehensive General Liability and Aulomobile Liability, provided that such umbrena or excess 
insurance results in the same type of coverage as required for the Individual policies. 

Belore the execution of the Agreement, the Design Professional shall provide Client a certificate(s) of 
insurance evidencing compliance with the requirements In this section. The certificates shall name the 
Client, and its officials and employees, as additional insureds on the Comprehensive General Uability, 
Automobile Uability, and any applicable umbrella and excess policies. 

lndemniflcatlon tor Claims agalnst Client by Third Partiea - The Design Professional agrees to defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Mountain Brook, and its agents, employees and officials 
(hereinafter the 'Indemnitees") from and agalnst all demands, actions, damages, judgments, expenses 
(including but not limited to attorneys' fees, expert fees, court costs and other litigation costs), losses, 
damages, and Claims (including those for bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to Injury to, 
destruction or loss 01 use of tangible properly, or those for linanciai loss or damages) (collectively herein 
"Claim(s)') made bv anv third ~arties (includina anv emolovee, subcontractor or re~resentative of the 
~esign' ~rofessionai, hereafter a ' ~ e s i ~ n  Profes&nal ~epreienlative") that arise out 'of, relate to, result 
from, or are attributable to any of the followinp la) any conditions in or about the ClienCowned ~rooerties or 
Sites that the Design ~rolessional or any ~ i s i g n  Professional Representative may enter or encounter in 
performing their services or work; (b) any negligent act, omission ar conduct by the Deslgn Professional or 
any Design Professional Representative that arises from or relates to its (or their) performance or failure to 
perform its (or their) responsibilities under this Agreement. This indemnification obllgalion includes Claims by 
mird parties that are caused In part by the negligence of an Indemnitee; provided, nothing herein shall obligate 
the Design Professional to indemnify any of the Indemnitees for Claims resulting from the sole negligence or 
from the willful misconduct of the Indemnitees. 

Licensing - Before commencing its services, the Design Professional, at its own expense, will obtain all 
licenses, permits or other governmental authorizations needed to complete that work, including without 

bfounfarn Brook Park and Rcc h l~s fe r  P1'1n 
April 27. 20 15 

tlashvillc Off tcc I114 5 th  Avenuc Ilorch Sullc 200 . l(aLtivlllc Tcnncrrrr 37208 - Phonc. 615 242 (Ma - Fax 615 242.1305 
Atlanta 0111cc 220 W Crogan Srrccl Sulk 10a . Lavrrcnccnltc. Gcorgts 3m.5 . P h m  770.318 C017 . Fa*. 770 318 0197 



WSE 

-Io*u.oTCP 

limitation, a business license issued by the City of Mountain Brook (collectively, "Licensing"). The Design 
Professional further agrees to maintain that Ucensing throughout the performance of its work. 

Standard of Servicea -The Design Professional expeditiously will perform its services in a manner that is 
consistent with professional skill and care that would be provided by other professionals in its industry under 
same or similar conditions, and in the orderly progress of the Project. 

Independent Contractor - The Design Professional is an independent contractor d the Client. This 
Agreement does not create any partnership, ioint venture or principal-agent relationshrp between the Clrent 
and the Design Professional. Further, the Client retains no control or authority with rerspect to Its means 
and methods in which the Design Professional (or any of its employees or representetives) performs the 
services or work. 

No Assignment - The Design Professional may not assign or subcontract any of its rights, obligations or 
the benelits of this Agreement to any third party without the written consent of the aient, which consent 
may be unreasonably withheld. 

No Third Party Beneficiaries. The Agreement is made only for the benefit of the Clknt and the Design 
Professional. It is not intended, nor shall it be construed, to grant or bestow any benelit, right or privilege to 
any third party. 

Conflicting Provisionn - In the event of any conflict between the provisions in these Terms and Conditions 
and those in the Scope of Sewices, the provisions in these Terms and Conditions shall govern and control. 

Intallactual Property Warranty. With respect to any deliverables or Instruments of Services furnished by 
the Design Professional to the Client in connection with this Project, the Design Professional warrants that H 
owns, is licensed or has the right to supply all such work product, including alt intellectual rights attendant 
thereto. To the Iullest extent permitted by law, the Design Professional shall defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the Client (and Its representatives) from and against al: actions, damages, iudgments, losses, 
expenses (including but not limited to attorneyst fees, expert fees, court costs and other i~tigalion costs) and 
ciaims for patent, copyright or other infringement of intellectual property rlghts arising out of, related to, or 
resulting from the Design Professional's breach of this warranty, 

Entire Agreemenl- Thii Agreement (including Attachment A and Attachment B - the Scope of Services) 
represents the entire agreement between the parties concerning the matters herein, and supersedes all 
prior negouations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be amended 
only by written Instrument signed by both parties. 

Counterparl~ - This Agreement may be executed in counterparts each of which when executed by the 
parties shall be deemed to be a complete original. An e?ectronIc or facsim#le copy of the executed contract 
or counterpart shall be deemed, and shall have the same legal force and effect as an original document. 

No Waiver - Any forbearance or delay on the part of the Client in enforcing any of its rights under this 
Agreement shalr not be construed as a waiver of such rights. No terms herein shall be waived unless 
expressly waived In writing. 

Immigration Law Compliance. T h  Design Professional represents and warrants that (a) it does not 
knowingly employ, hke for employment, or continue to employ an 'unauthorized alien," as delined by the 
Weason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citken Pmtectlon Act, Act No. 201 1-535 (H. 8. 56), as amended 
from time to time (the 'Actw), and that, during the performance of this Agreement, it shall participate in the E- 
Verily program as required under the terms of the Act; (b) it will compty with all applicable provisions of the 
Act with respect to its contractors or subconsultants by entering into an agreement with or by obtaining an 
affidavit from such entities providing that such entities are in compliance with the Act with respect to their 
participation In the E-verify program; and (c) it shall not hire, retain or contract with any contractor or 

klormlain B r w k  Park nnd Rec hfaster Plan 
April P i .  20 15 

Page 9 of i 
LA #I4235 

tla%hvillr O l f ~ c c  I314 5th Avcnm Ibrlh 5ullc 2M . trarhvlllc Tcnncsscc 37108 - Phorr 615 242.0010 - Far. 615 242 1.105 
Atlanta Oll~cc 220 W Croyan Street, S~r~lc 100 * Lav,rcnccntlc. Gcorq~a 3LW6 . Phonc. 770 333 m17 - Far: 770.138 0397 



subconsultant that il knows is not in compliance with the Act. The Deslgn Professional further agrees and 
warrants that it will fully comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the 
Immigration Act of 1990, in its hiring and employment practices, and that if it receives actual knowledge of 
the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the Slate of Alabama, It will remove that employee from 
the Project and shall require each of Its contractors, subconsultants or olher parlies with whom it has a 
contract, to act In a similar fashion. If the Design Professional violates any term of this paragraph, the 
Agreement will be subject to lmmediale termination by the Client. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the 
Deslgn Professional shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Client from any and all losses, 
consequential damages, expenses (Including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities. 
fines, penalties, and any other costs arising out of or in any way related to the Deslgn Professional's failure 
to fulfill its obligations contained in this paragraph. 

hfor~ntarn Brook Park and Rcc hias:er Plait 
Apt11 27, 2015 

Page 10 01 I 1  
LA #14235 

I l~shv i l l c  Of l lcc.  1314 5th Avenlr t h l h ,  Smlc 200 . tlahville, Tcnmssm 37208 . Pholrc. 615-242-OMO - Fax. 615-24Z 1405 
AUanta Olflcc. 220 W C r q a n  Strcel. Surlc 100. Lavircnccnllc, Gmrqla 3 W 6  . Phonc: 770-318-MI7 - Far: 770-338-0397 



ATTACHMENT A - Hourly RatesRate Schedule 

LOSE & ASSOCIATES, INC, 
HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE (for use with all hourly agreements and for This Schedule is 
applicable only if Additional Services) are approved by Client and performed by Lose. 

Professional Sewices Hourly Rate 

Senior Principal/President,. ........................................................................ $230.00 
Principal INice President ............................................................................... $210.00 
Principal IINice President ............................................................................... $1 90.00 
Division Director 1, President Emeritus, Associate .......................................... $1 85.00 
Division Director II ........................................................................................... $140.00 
Sr. Environmental Biologist ............................................................................ $125.00 
Senior Landscape Architect, Architect, and Engineer .................................... $1 20.00 
Certified Park 8 Recreation Specialist .......................................................... $ 1  0.00 
Engineer Specialisff Project Coordinator ......................................................... $ 1  0.00 
L A I. Architect I, Engineer I, Project Manager I .............................................. 1 7 0.00 
LA II, Architect II, Engineer 11, Project Manager II ........................................ $105.00 
Land Planner I, Intern Architect I. Engineer in Training I 

BIM Specialist, GIs Specialist I, Assistant Graphic Designer I ...................... $90.00 
Land Planner 11, Intern Architect II, Engineer in Training II 

GIs Specialist II, Assistant Graphic Designer II ............................................ $85.00 
Tee hnician ...................................................................................................... $70.00 
Corporate Controller ......................................................................................... $95.00 
Marketing Director ............................................................................................. $65.00 
Assistant Accounts Manager, Administrative Assistant I ................................... $45.00 
Administrative Assistant II ................................................................................. $35.00 

Reimbursable Expenses 

Consultants' Services 
Prints 
Long Distance Telephone Charges 
Postage and Shipping 
Mileage and Travel Expenses 
Copies 

cost + 10% 
cost + 10% 
cost + 10% 
cost + 10% 
cost + 10% 
cost + 10% 

January 1,201 5 

NOTE: All the above-slated fees and expenses are to be billed monthly, and the 
invoices are due and payable upon receipt. Other reimbursable expenses not shown 
hereon will be invoiced at our cost lus 10%. These rates are current until January 1, 
2016, at which time they may be ahsted by the Design Professional. 

hlo~mlah Brooh Park nnd Rec Lfasler Plan 
Apnl 27, 20 15 

Page I l 0 l l l  
LA dlJ235 

Ila~hvillc Oflicc 1114 5th Aventc tbrth. Sultc 2M . Ila%hr?llc Tcn i rsm 17208 Phonc 615 ?.I2 W. Fax 615-242 1405 
Addnta Otflcc 220 W Crogan Strcct. S u m  1DO. 1arrcnce:lle. Gmrgla 30046 Phmc 770 138 m17 + f a -  71::-338-;:I97 



Mr. Sam 5. Gaston, City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
P. 0 Box 13009 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

Dear Mr. Gaston: 

Per your request I have revised our scope of sewices for the development of a Comprehensive 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan. We have added Mary Henderson back into the project to look 
at programming, staffing and fees and charges, We will also provide facility recommendations, 
benchmarking, demographlei and connectlvity. 1 have also Included a web based survey as I 
think It will give the city more information on community desires for new facllltles. We did not 
include concept sketches for each park to keep the cost down. If you would like to add them, 
the costs would be $3,500.00 for each park's concept plan. 

I have enclosed a revised approach and an updated spread sheet. Please review these items and 
let me know If you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Chris Camp, ASLA 
President 

Curpartite OHice! 13 !4 5th Avenue Norflt, Stritc 200 Nashvrlle, Tennesree 37208 . PIlanr 6I5-242-OW0 Fax G 15-222-1405 
Georgln Office: 220 W Crogun Street, Suite 100 . Lowrenceville, Georgla 30046 Phone 770 338 00) 7 Fox 770-338-0397 



Mountain Broak Comprehensive 
Parks Plan 

I 

Employcf Initisl ck 11 m11 
Hourly Ralr 52311.00 $140.00 51 10.00 

Demand rlnulylls, Facility Assessment, etc 

I'm?Jccl Inltlhllan 
Kick ollmcctine 
OiXcials Inlet s'icws 
R m  Mup Prcpnrntinn 

U c m a ~ p h i c  Rcscarctt 
Gap Amlyrls 
Cmncctiviry Analysfs 

Totnl Hoon 
S~btoUl 

20 

Prcpnte Ptcliminary Plan 
.kesenl Preliminary Plan 
Prcparc Final Pion 
yrcscnt Rnal Plan 

~otp- 

6 
8 

2 
2 

6 
S 1.380.00 

Labor TOW 
hbor  with Conlingericy 

Relmbumble hperucs 
CMlsull~nls (Part or Our Fm) 

Pmjecicd Grand TOM 

6 
8 

6 
8 

8 
8 
8 
12 
36 

18 
24 
20 

71 
0 

S - 

Subtotrlt S 8.280.00 

564.780.00 
$ 64,780.00 

S 67580.00 

20 
6 

20 

48 

0% 

0.0% 
0.0% 

1 67.580.00 

10 

- 
20 

S 1.700.00 

5 6.720.00 

8 

r 

10 
10 
2 0  

S 2.400.00 

S 680.00 

U 

8 

16 

f 22 

S 1.920.00 

0 
S - 

R 

8 
12 -- 
28 

12 
I1  
46 

$ SJ80.00 

44 
16 
!2 
24 
136 

S 3.080.00 S 20.680.00 



PROJECT INITIATION 

Kickoff Meeting, Research, Information Assembly and Interviews: 

The planning team will conduct a planning meeling with members of tlre City staff and 
other officials to review project goals, the planning process and the proposed time 
schedule. This will give the elected leaders an opportunily to shim constituent concerns 
and their long-range visions for the department. This meeting will providc h e  
opportunity to identify known issues and concerns, to gain an overview of the Mountain 
Brook's rcsources and lo discuss specific areas that may require spccial attention during 
thc planning process, Target dates will bc set for delivery of the preliminary reports and 
recommendations, subillission of commcnts by thc City and preparation of the final 
documcnt for publication. We will end this stage with a windshield visit to as many parks 
as possible to gel a feel of the condition and make-up of public facilities. 

We will work with staff to formulate a list of benchnrarking departments and then begin 
gathering comparison data. On prcvious projccts, we have found that staff and elected 
officials htlve a good idea which conlmunities they feel they should be measured against. 

Base Map Development: 

Prior to the kickoff meeting, we will have reviewed any current owner-provided 
inventories, maps and GJS data; we will discuss previous planning reports dcvelopcd by 
Mountain Brook to gain a hetter idea of previous planning efforts and results. We will 
consult with City staff lo idcntify the large private recreation providers in and around the 
City and how surrounding City and County recreation agencies (Veslavia, Homewood, 
Birmingham, Jefferson County) should be involved in the process. We will then contact 
these providers in order to asccrtain thc lcvels and types of recreation services and 
facilities each provides. 

Site Assessments: 

In thc weeks following the kickoff meeting, our [cam members, using the information 
provided by the City, will begin visiting facilities to gain a better understanding of the 
City's level of service, maintenance practices and overall condition of park facilities. Tlle 
team will record their impressions relating to conditions of facilities, making spccific 
notes on arcas of safcty concern or accessibility issues related to the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. Other issues related to historic significance, need for conservation, 
access, circulation, safety, aesthetics, surrounding land uses, drainage and forest canopy 
and user groups observed will be noted. Particular attention will be paid to the level of 
maintenance at each facility. Facility inventories will also be used to provide evaluations 
and rccomrnendations for the comparative analysis of benchmcuk communities. 



PUBLIC PART fClPATION 

Steering Committee Formation: 

Concurrenl with the site irlventory and analysis, wc will finalize with the City the 111akeup 
of the Steering Committee to work with our master planning team. We stmngly 
encourage that you empower a group of citizen representatives (who can be relied up to 
make cornpron~ises where necessary) to help manage larger citizen spccid interest group 
cxpectations and represent underserved groups who might not otherwise participate in 
other types of public input. If you decide to go this route, we will work with City staff to 
idcntify those to serve and will prepare a letter of invitalion to potential members. The 
invitation will include an overview of the planning process and a list of membcrs' 
requisite tasks and responsibilities. We will follow up with chosen committee inembers to 
ensure tlial they fully understand the tasks and are committed to attend the Stcering 
Committee workshop, public meetings, the preliminary draft presentation (at your 
discretion) and the filial presentation. 

Steering Conunittee Workshop: 

We will then conduct a workshop with the Steering Committee. The workshop agenda 
will involve subdividing the group and giving each snlnller group a list of questions to 
which each responds. The issues considered in this workshop will include developing a 
nlission and vision for the department and a discussion on establishing local facility 
development standards or levcl-of-service standards. This will involve presenting existing 
National Recreation and Parks Association (NRPA) community park standards and 
modifying these standards lo reflect the specific needs in Mountain Brook. We will also 
discuss the demographic trends in thc area and how ncw cxpectations for park and 
recreation services may differ from the established understanding of patk and recreation 
facilities. Also on the agenda will be the identification of dual sewice oppolbtunilies and 
partnerships that exist i n  the community. Projected areas or growth, which will require 
expanded parks and services in the futurc, will be identified and new dcvclopments 
planned within the conlmunity will be evaluated lor the impact they will have on the 
parks system. The groups will then reassemble to hear presentations from each and 
subsequently build a consensus as a single body. 

Public input Meetings: 

In ordcr to gauge public support and to ~lnderstand fully the recreational needs of 
Mountain Brook, our team will facilitate an initial public meeting to inform citizens of 
the upcoming planning process and to take their input. Prior to the meering, the team will 
assist in the preparalion of a press releasc to be submitted by the City for advertisenlent 
about the upcoming input scssions. Thc goal of the meeting, like other venues for public 
input, is to gauge a list of needed facilities and programs. The ~nceting will also reflect 
the community's vision For parks within the ovcrall scopc of public services offered by 
the City. Input will be solicited about the development of the local park and recreation 



standards specific to the City. During the meeting, the project team will also address 
citizens' questions about the master plan and will record opinions and ideas about the 
current delivery system. 

The meeting will also provide opportunities for people ta offer ideas for change and 
improvement, This first round of public inpur will occur on the second team site visit 
after the team has developed inventories and a basic understanding of the department, A 
presentation on initial findings, as well as recreation trends and opportunities, will be 
rnzde to explain the planning process and Lo encourage the community to think of 
recreation opportunities outside of thosc that currently exist. We will solicit comments on 
recrcotion nccds, open space and conservation needs, programnling opponunities and 
issues of connectivity with greenways and sidewalks as part of the prcsentations. 
Conlment cards will be distributed; the resulting submissions will be compiled wilh the 
vcrbal cornments from the workshops for inclusion in thc final reporl. 

Product of This Phase: 

We will record all comments during interviews, meetings and presentations and asse~l~blc 
the malerial into a summary report illustrated with chatts and graphs to indicate cIcarIy 
the outcome of the process. This information will be evulualed and tabulated for use in 
the demand analysis andor reconunended program offerings. This information will also 
be used in subsequent evaluations and recommendations of the Department. All 
sun~muies, results, charts and graphs will be included i n  the final master plan document. 

DEMAND ANALYSIS AND EVALUATIONtNEEDS I N D W A C L F Y  
ASS ESSMENTt ACTION PLAN 

This phase begins with previous phases, but colltinucs after the initial phases are 
complete. The analysis phase of the project is a detailed process that identifies 
community characteristics and allows the project team to become familiar with previous 
and currcnt planning efforts. At this stage of the process, we will consolidate and analyze 
all public input, demographics and existing planning documents. Existing parks and 
recreation goals will bc analyzcd and restructured in response to interviews, workshops, 
and public comment. We will review the goals and objectives of existing planning reports 
to determine the extcnt to which those goals huve been tlchieved. We will utilize the 
consensus results of public input, personal intervicws, workshops and steering committec 
meetings to shape demand analysis questions that are part of a Community Needs 
Assessment survey. 

Demand Anal ysislCommunity Needs Assessment Survey: 

We will usc a technique we used on several recent plans, which is Lo post on the City's 
website the link 10 the community survey we will host on a separate web site. Th is  will 
give people who were not able to attend public input meetings an opportunity to 
participate in the process. While these responses will not be fully statistically valid, they 



do provide us with valuable preference data that can be used to shape programming and 
facility recommendations. We will work with staff 10 tailor the questions for the survey to 
focus on the most critical issues related to parks, open spacc, grecnways and access to 
park programs and facilities. 

Our staff will compile and analyze the survey results, looking for preferences and 
tendencies within the survey responses. Because we have completed multiple recreation 
surveys as part of our comprehensive planning process for other communities around the 
country, we will be able to compare Mountain Brook area responses to other 
communities and sec if local trends arc similar to regional and national trends. As part of 
the master plan report, the survey responses will be tabulated and documented with cham 
and graphs. A Powerpoint presentation of survcy findings will aiso be provided i n  
addition to the survey narrative in the master plan report. 

Demographic Research: 

In ordcr to fully reflect the community for which the plan is being developed, the project 
team will utilize current and projected demographic and sociological factor data, 
including population composition, population growth projection and trends, economic 
factors, and land-use patterns to prepare charts and graphs illustrating the City's actual 
growth bctween 2000 and 2010, as well as projected growth through the year 2030. 
Available data from the U.S. Bureau of the Census will be used to express the overall 
gender, age, education and cconotnic health of the citixcns served by Mountain Brook 
parks. Gencrnl comparisons of these statistics will bc made at state and national levels in 
order to understand community characteristics in a broadcr sense. We wilt prepare a 
detailed comparative analysis with the selected benchmark communities. We will look at 
the data both globally tl~roughout the City and by census tract whcn evaluating service 
areas. We will also apply the demographics analysis Lo the service area of the parks to 
determine how each park is servicing the surrounding population, both currently slid in 
the futurc. 

Park Distribution Mapping and Gap Anulysis: 

A critical element of the planning and evaluation scrvice will be to develop level-of- 
service maps with service area boundaries for existing parks using GIS base information 
provided by the City. These maps will then be ovcrlaid with other community dots, such 
as location of libraries, schools and school playgrounds, colleges, large private rccreatioll 
facilities and state or federal park facilities, to determine access to park facilities on a 
community-wide basis. These maps will allow the planning team to delermine where 
service gaps are located and the relationship of facilities to major population centcrs 
within Mountuin Brook. All of this data will be critical to developing recommendations 
for new park facilities and recommending open space. Completed maps will be formatted 
so that GIs staff can update them in the futurc. 

As part of the park distribution gap analysis, wc will review the impacts of the growth 
projections and land use guidelines outlined in the Ci~y's comprehensive plan. 1 will 



include analysis of the impact of the desired growth patterns on existing parks and 
identify where new parks, greenways and open space will be needed to provide a well 
rounded system as growth and new development patterns dcvelop. It wiIl look at travel 
limes and impediments to travel that limit access to existing and proposed facilities. Short 
term and long term recommendations will be made in order to minimize the gaps in 
service and create more connectivity through greenway and sidewalk developmenl. This 
part of the analysis will also look at where potenliai passive open space may be necded to 
provide rclief from development and to protect ecologically sensitive areas. 

Using a combination of ihc demographics analysis and the park distribution analysis, we 
will develop u scoring strategy that outlines areas of the city based on how well they are 
served and how future demographic trcnds wi!l affect these lcvels of service. 

Connectivity Analysis: 

Team members will review any existing and planned grecnwny corridors it1 Mountain 
Brook, recornmendntio~ls of the City's comprehensive transportation plan and projected 
land use plans to see if there are opportunities to expand greenway corridors. The team 
will assess the overall connectivity of the community in order to determine areas where 
connectivity is limited and where improved community access is nceded. The learn will 
also look at thc potentinl to link City grecnway corridors with [hose of surrounding 
communities in order to maxinzize overall connectivity within the region. 

After the analysis of connectivily and environmental benefits has been completed. the 
team wilI prepare a greenway corridor map that details existing systems and 
recornmended facilities. The team will develop a phasing plan and cost analysis for the 
recommendations. 

Program Analysis 
The planning icam will use the results of all the input methods and inventories to make 
recommendations for programs. Recommendations will identify new programs that will 
requirc new facilities, in addition to programming apportunities that have the potential to 
serve new user groups and program opportunities to expand revenue generation within 
the department. 

An important part of this analysis will bc to maximize the effective leadership groups that 
are already playing a role in programming, such as athletic associations or 501 .c.3 
organizations. Taking advantage of non-paid staff and volunteer groups is an effective 
too! that is utilized by parks and recreation departments across the country. The key is to 
establish clear polices and guidelines that these groups follow whcn operating on public 
property. 

Working with the park staff and our stakeholder groups, we will develop tr ranking 
strategy to determine which programs receive priority. 

Partnering AnalysidPublic Private System Considerations 



The goal of this assessment is to determine what agreements might be enacted to in~prove 
the overall recreation delivery system and niakc optimal use of faciIities. Thc team will 
also review capital improvement projectstCP and program costs to determine the 
ell'ectiveness of exis titig policies and the viability of future policies. 

This process will include an assessmenl of groups such as private youth associations, 
adult sports leagucs, civic groups, 501 .c.3 organizations, schools, and other secondary 
group agreements relaiive to maintenance and operating costs and revenue generated. The 
process will also include an cvaluatian of communitywide programming polential for the 
department. Pdrticular allcntion will be paid lo developing recornmcndations for 
continued and future coordination with youth associatio~ls and other groups; these 
recommenda~ions will also rocus on achieving the highest degree of efficiency and 
cfiectiveness possible. Our teat11 will identify potcntial opportunities for revenue 
generation and funding in rrddilion lo those already in place, including sources for grants. 

~ddi t iona l l~ ,  we will identify opportunities for private providers to assume sollie 
department roles, where it makes scnse. P a  of that analysis involves consideratinn of 
situatiorls where private providers may be able lo provide services more efficiently, but 
must also consider which private providers may no1 be a good solution in cascs whcrc 
access to park and recreation activities are not as inclusive as at public facilities and 
progratns. 

Budget Analysis, Fecs and Charges 
Wc will look at the parks hudgct to deternunc the cullent levcl of per capita spending by 
the City, to determine percentage of total City budget and to compare these spcnding 
lcvcls with othcr communities of similar size in the state and region. Thcse comparisons 
will provide the planning teal11 with a better utidcrslanding of thc lcvel of funding for 
recreation programs and scrvices. This a.scssment will also look at areas to increase 
internal revenue production based on the cur~-e.nt fees and charges. The plauning team 
will detcrmine the bcst business practice for fees and charges. Thc planning team wit1 
evaluate your current fee determination proccss and make rccornmendations for 
development of a standardized approach to assessing rcsident and nonrcsidcnt rees. 

Staffing Assessment and Opcrational Budgct 
Working with City staff and elected officials, the team will evaluate and provide 
rccomme~~dations for the future department staff structure. Recommendations will be 
developed for sluff orgirnizalion, titles, new planning and programming divisions, and 
new staff needed to operate and maintain new park programs and facilities. These 
recolnmcndations will be made to provide for the delivery of rccrcation services and 
programs. Budgeting projections for new starf and future staff at new facilities will be 
providcd along with cstirnalcs for operational expenses for each basic park using per-acre 
cost and for all major facilities. 

As part of this evaluation, the planning team will look at which staff posilions will 
optimize service delivery by full time City staff and which positions can be contract 
positions. Many parks and recreation agencies today routinely utilize part-timc staff and 



contract staff to direct programs, oversee entire facililies and as part of the overall 
maintenance operation. We recently did a similar evaluation in a recent plan and 
recornmended a combination of contract services and City staff to maximize delivery of 
service for a new depanment with challenges similar to those Mountain Brook faces. 

Park, Facility and Land Needs Assessment: 

The planning team will review existing facilities relative to expandability, existing design 
standards and levels of maintenancc. In addition to site-based assessment, the distribution 
of facilities rclative to travel times and population served will be dcveloped. Facilities 
will also be calegorized using established park standards (mini-park, neighborhood, 
coinmunity, open space, greenway) to andyzc the makeup ofthe parks within the system 
relative to national slandards for park facilities. Use and overuse of facilities based on 
program rcgistrations and community input will be evaluaked to aid in  the development of 
recommendations. Strategies and poIicy recomn~enda~ions will be made lo enhance 
existing facilities and to maximize recreation opportunities. We will identify where 
additional focused studies may be needcd in order to take the master plan 
recommendation and develop recammel~dations related to the operations nnd 
maintenance of parks and facilities. We will analyze lhese factors to determine their 
carrying capacity and if they have reached, or are near reaching, that capacity. Wc will 
review nnd rank major green space resources for applicability to overall park land needs 
and will reco~nnlend criteria lor park land acquisition. 

We will utilize national standards pubIislled by the Nalional Recreation and Park 
Association (NRPA), staff and slccring comnlittee recommendations and benchmark 
communities to develop standards and recomnlendations specific to Mountain Brook. 
The proposed standards will bc tailored to achieve the consensus goals, objectives and 
vision identified in the planning process; it is understood that local trends and desires arc 
critical to this planning process and should take precedencc over tlational planning 
standards. 

Capital I'nipravernent Priorities: 

We will prepare a preliminary Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) fur the City's park 
system. We will use information gathered throughout the process to create a short-tcrm 
phasing recornmcndation (years 1-2,) a hng-term phasing recornlnendntion (years 3-5) 
and a Iuture term (years 6- 10). The pluu will also include recommendations for 
implementing changes using partnering agencies (schnds, private groups, community 
organiritions, erc.) to carry some of the responsibility Kecommelldations will be based 
on actior~alrle, not theoretical methods of funding, and will consider possibilities such as 
fees, foundations, sales tax, millage increases, grants and endowments, etc. These will be 
presented to the City as well as to the Steering Committee for review and comments. 
Following review comments and recommended modifications, we will prepare the final 
capital recanlnlendations and phasing report. 

Public Outreach Recommendalions: 



The rcsu1ts of the survey data will idcntify strenglhs and weaknesses of how the public is 
made aware of the department's activities. From the survey questions, we will be able 
recommend ways to increase your presence in the community and idcntify which media 
resources, partnering community organizations, eic. are the best avenues for 
communication. 

PRESENTATION OF THE PRELIMINARY MASTER PLAN REPORT AND 
FINDINGS ALONG WITH THE PRELTMmlARY MASTER PLAN, COST AND 
FUNDING RECOMMENDATIONS 

Preliminary Recommcndations Input Meclings and Web Posting: 

Our planning team will present the preliminary rccomrnendations and findings for the 
park system and the individual parklconnectivily master plans to the Steering Committee, 
Elected Officials and City staff to gain thcir feedback on the recommendations. We will 
also conduct comrnunitywide public meeting to gather itlput and review comments on the 
proposed plan recommendations. Wc will providc the City with a .PDF copy of the 
preliminary master plan report to post on the City's website for a two-week comment 
period. This will give citizens who were unablc to attend the public meetings an 
opportunity to comment on the plan. 

Priari~ization strategies will be prepared for implementation of recommended facilities. 
'I'hese strategies will include recommendations for improvements and renovations lo 
existing facilities, as well as new facilities required to meet Lhc identified public need. 
Vision statements along with short- and long-term goals and objectives will be provided 
to dircct implementation of the master plan. 

Product of This Phase: 

The technical report from this phase will include: 
Summaries of data analysis 
Survey summaries and analysis 
Policy and Program summaries and rccomrnendations 
Staffing summaries and recommendations 
Budget review and recommendations 
Individual park assessments and potential new land acquisition recommendations. 
New park facility cost estimates 
Distribution pattern maps 
Benchmarking comparisons 
Facility inventory charts 
Greenway and trails connectivity maps and cost cstimates 
Land acquisition recomrnendalions for future development or reserved open space 
Funding sources and recommendations 
Overall capital spending and phasing plans 



An executive summary 

Afler we have gathered all the comments, we will meet with staff, City Administration 
and Elected Officials to go over a comment summary. At this meeting, comments will be 
presented by topic area, and the team will ask for final input before the final master plan 
is prepared. 

Delivcrables 

We will providc a digital copy in .PDF format on CD and a copy of our PowerPoint 
presentation to staff for distribution. We will also provide a full-size print af key maps. A 
master plan appendix will havc copics of all meeting and planning session surnnjaries. 
Other critical data that i s  felt to be important to explaining the master plan 
recommcndalions will. also be included in thc appendix. 

FINAL MASTER PLAN PKEPARATlON 

After a thorough evaluation of all comments on thc Preliminary Master Plan, our team 
will prepare a Final Master Plan Report and will present i\ first to City staff as a draft, 
and then after rcviaion, to the City Manager and City Council. This plan will include the 
following: 

Final Deliverables 

Wc will provide a digital copy in .pdf formal on CD and a copy of our PowcrPoint 
presentation to staff for distribution. We will  also provide a full-size version of key maps. 
A master plan appendix will have copies of all meeting and planning session summaries. 
Other critical duta that is felt to be important to explaining the mastcr plan 
recommcndations will also be included in the appendix. 

PROJECT TIMELINE AND MILESTONES 

We regularly perform comprehensive mastcr plans for cities and counties in 
approximately 5-6 months. We feel that in order to perform the scope of work in a 
profcssional and meaningful manner, the amount of time we have dedicated to each step 
is appropriate, and includes sufficient time for City officials to review the 
recommendations at each step. If desired, we can condense the schedule as desired. 

Project Inilialion: Weeks 1-3 

Public Pmicipation: Weeks 4-5 

Demand AnalysisISurvey and EvaluatiodNeeds Index/ Weeks 1 - 14 
Facility Assessmcnt/Action Plan & Creation 
of Preliminary Plan: 



Presentation of the Preliminary Master Plun 
Rcport and Findings & Associated Meetings: 

Creation of Final Mastcr PIan 

Final Master Plan Presentation: 

Weeks 15-16 

Weeks 16-20 

W e k  21 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015064 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby approves the lunchtime restaurant conditional use application for CUP 
Food You Pick Up at 73 Church Street. 

ADOPTED: This 1 l th day of May, 20 15. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 1 I th day of May, 201 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

1, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a hue and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on May 11,2015, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

73 Church Street Conditional Use Approval 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

MEMO 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

May 7,20 15 

Mayor, City Council 
City Manager 
City Attorney 

Dana Hazen, City Planner 

rn 
73 Churc;~ ~ ~ e e t  (previous Gia's Cakes) Crestllne Village 

Dana 0. Hazen, AICP 
City Planner 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 
Telephone: U15/802-3821 
Fax: 205.879.6913 
hazend@mtnbrook.org 
www.mtnbrook.org 

Request for approval of a fast-casual, pick up food use (lunchtime operation) in the previous Gia's 
Cakes location in Crestline Village. As may be seen in the attached letter of operational characteristics, 
the establishment is proposed to be open during the lunch peak hours of 1 1 :00 a.m. to 1 :00 p.m., 
thereby requiring approval of a conditional use. There are only 6-8 seats proposed inside, with another 
6 proposed on the outdoor sidewalk (sidewalk cafk permit on VDR agenda for May 20'~). 

The concept is walk-idtake-out. Meals are pre-packed and serve mostly to-go customers. The 
applicant has indicated that the experience in other CUP locations is that it is not a "destination" use, 
but tends to serve mostly walk-up patrons. 

The number of employees present between is minimal, with the peak employee time in the early 
morning and late evening shifts (3-4 employees). The applicant has indicated that the employees will 
park in designated long-term public parking. 

The zoning ordinance requires council approval of a lunchtime conditional use, and states that any 
proposed conditional use will be reviewed as to the following: 

Whether the use would disparately impact public parking in the area; 

Whether vehicular or pedestrian circulation would be impacted by the use; 

Whether the use is compatibIe with surrounding existing uses; 

Whether the hours of operation or peak traffic times would impact existing uses. 



CUP Food You Pick Up, LLC 
174 Watercolor Way 
Suite 103 
Santa Rosa Beach FL 32459 
May 1,2015 

FOOD YOU PICK UP 
Mountain Brook City Council 
56 Church Street 
PO BOX 130009 
Mountain Brook AL 35213 

Dear Mountain Brook City Council: 

We are requesting a land use permit to allow our business CUP Food You Pick Up, LLC to operate from the 
hours of 7:OOAM to 9:OOPM. We have signed a lease on the property located at 73 Church Street and were 
not made aware of this requirement until this week. 

CUP provides healthy and delicious meals for people on the go. Our breakfast, lunch, and dinner menu items 
are made fresh daily and packaged for convenience. We rely on foot traffic and grab and go customers for 
our sales. 

Our kitchen will be most heavily staffed in the early morning (3-4 staff members) and late evening shifts (3-4 

staff members). With the limited parking available our employees will be using the all-day parking on Dan 
Watkins. 

We currently plan to have 6-6 seats inside and will be making an application for cafe seating for an additional 
6-8 seats. Most of our customers take their meals to go and because the meals are pre-packaged the time 
they spend in the restaurant is simply the time i t  takes to complete the sales transaction. 

Please feel free to contact me directly if you require additional information. 

Sincerely, 

Paulette DeGraw 

Direct 770.653.6534 
paulette@pickupcup.com 
www.pickupcup.com 





RESOLUTION NO. 2015068 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that the City 
Council hereby authorizes the execution of license agreements with respect to the West Montcrest Drive 
sidewalk construction project as follows: 

1. Robert Bradford and Katie Avery, 12 West Montcrest Drive, 352 13 (Exhibit A) 
2. John and Gina F. Thomas, 16 West Montcrest Drive, 35213 (Exhibit B) 
3. John B. and Kerri C. Windle, 14 West Montcrest Drive, 35213 (Exhibit C) 

ADOPTED: This 1 l th day of May, 2015. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 1 I th day of May, 20 1 5. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on May 1 1,201 5, as same appears in the minutes of record of 
said meeting. 

City Clerk 

W. Montcrest Drive Sidewalk Construction Project License Agreements 2015-068 



LICENSE AGREEMENT 

This License Agreement (the "Agreement9?j is made and entered into on the date last written 
do/r ") by and between Robert Brndtord & Katie 

d to as "Grantor") and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, a 
municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as "City"). 

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner of the following described real estate (hereinafter referred to as 
the "Property") located in the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, to-wit: 

Lot 9 BLK 6 , according to the survcy of Shades Vallcv, 2nd Scctor, as recorded 
in Map Book 25 page 55 in the Probate Ofice of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

At the time of this Agreement the Property is also known as 12 West Montcrest Drive; 

WHEREAS. the City is constructing a new wall that will be approximately 3' high and a sidcwalk 
approximately 4' wide on the municipal right of way along the street in front of the structure located 
on the Property (the "Project); 

WHEREAS, in order to construct the Project, the City may be required to perform operations on 
the Property that may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

. aIter and re-slope the existing grade of the Property to align with new wall; 
a. disturb and replant grass, turf and other pre-existing plantings; 
b. remove sections of the existing driveway and repavetrestore same; 
c. as needed, install, maintain, repair and replace drainage structures (including 

pipes, culverts, and catch basins) on under the Property; 
d. store machinery, equipment and supplies on the Properly throughout the Projcct; 

and 
e. perform other work, activities and operations reasonably related to the construction 

of the aforesaid wall and sidewalk. 

(collectively hereinafter the "Operations"); 

WHEREAS, the location on the Property at which the Operations may be conducted on is depicted 
on the attached Exhibit A and hereinafkr referenced as the "License Area," and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms set forth in this Agrcemenf the undersigned desire to enter into 
this Agreement to facilitate the construction of the improvements contemplated on the Project 



For and in consideration of the sum of one dollar ($1.00) in hand paid to Grantor by the City, and 
other valuable considerat~on, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantor and the 
City agree as follows; 

1. The Grantor grants the City and its employees, contractors and representatives (cotlectively 
hereinafter the "City") an irrevocable, non-exclusive right to enter, occupy and use the License Area to 
conduct its Operations. 

2. The City agrees to perform its Operations in a commercially reasonable manner, and in 
compliance with applicable federal, state and other governmental laws, rules and regulations 

3. This term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and, unless extended by the 
parties in writing, expue six (6) months taler. 

4. At the completion of construction of the Project, the City shall restore the surface and 
improvements on Grantor's Property to the condition reasonably existing at the time of this Agreement, 
excepting changes in grade and other modification on the Property made to construct the Project. 

5. This Agreement only grants thc City a license, not any interest or estatc of any kind, nature or 
extent in the Property. The City does not and shall not claim any such interest or estate in the Property by 
virtue of entering into this Agreement or performing the Operations. 

6. The City shall not permit any mechanic's or materialman's lien to be filed against the Property 
by reason of any labor, services, materials or equipment supplied in connection with the Operations. If any 
such lien is filed affecting the Property, the Grantor shall promptly brnish the City with notice of that lien 
and the City shall promptly cause the same to be discharged. 

7. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a partnership, joint venture, principal- 
agent relationship, or any other relationship between the parties other than as independent parties to a 
contract entered at arms' length. 

8. This Agreement expresses the complete intent and agreement of the parties. The provisions 
herein supersede all prior negotiations, conversations, and understanding concerning the matters addressed 
herein. AH terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their respective 
successors and assigns, and cannot be amended, varied or waived by any oral representation or promise of 
any representative of the parties unless made in a subsequent writing that is signed by all parties. This 
Agreement may be cxecuted (a) in counterparts, a complete set of which togethcr shall constitute an 
original and (b) in duplicates, each of which shall constitute an original. Copies of this Agreement showing 
the signatures of the respective parties, whether produced by photographic, digital, computer, or other 
reproduction, may be used for dl purposes as originals. 

(Signature Page FolIuws) 



IN WTNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be executed as of the date($ 
shown below. 

GRANTOR 

Signahlre: 
Printed Name: 
Date: 

GRANTOR 

Signature: 
Printed Name: 
Date: 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

By; ATTEST Its; 
+-.' ... 

Date; 
C~ty Clerk 



EXHIBIT A - DEPICTION OF LICENSE AREA 

See attached. 





LICENSE AGREEMENT 

This License Agreeme t (th "Agreement ) IS made and entered into on the date last written 
below (Date: Y19// d 4 and between John 1 B Gina I Thomas 
(hereinafter referred to rantor") and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, a municipal 
corporation (hereinafter referred to as 'City"). 

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner of the following described real estate (hereinafter referred to as 
the "Property") located in the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, to-wit: 

Lot I I BLK 6, according to thc suwcy of Shades Valley Gardens, 2nd Sector, 
as recorded in Map Book 25 page 55. in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, 
Alabama 

At the time of this Agreement the Property is also known as 16 West Montcrest Drive; 

WHEREAS, the City is constructing a new wall that will be approximately 3' high and a sidewalk 
approximately 4' wide on the municipal right of way dong the street in front of the structure located 
on the Property (the "Project); 

WHEREAS, in order to construct the Project, the City may be required to perform operations on 
the Property that may include, but are not limited to, the following; 

. alter and re-slope the existing grade of the Property to align with new wall; 
a. disturb and replant grass, turf and other pre-existing plantings; 
b. remove sections of the existing driveway and repavettestore same; 
c. as needed, install, maintain, repair and replace drainage structures (including 

pipes, culverts, and catch basins) on under the Property; 
d. store machinery, equipment and supplies on the Property throughout the Project; 

and 
e. perform other work, activities and operations reasonably related to the construction 

of the aforesaid walr and sidewalk. 

(collectively hereinafter the "Operations"); 

WHEREAS, the location on the Property at which the Operations may bc conducted on is depicted 
on the attached Extubit A and hereinafter referenced as the "License Area;" and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the tenns set forth in this Agreement, the undersigned desire to enter into 
this Agreement to facilitate the construction of the improvements contemplated on the Project 



For and in consideration of the sum of one dollar ($1.00) in hand paid to Grantor by the City, and 
other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantor and the 
City agree as follows: 

1. The Grantor grants the City and its employees. contractors and representatives (collectively 
hereinafter the "City") an irrevocable, non-exclusive right to enter, occupy and use the License Area to 
conduct its Operations. 

2. The City agrees to perform its Operations in a commercially reasonable manner, and in 
compliance with applicable federal, state and other governmental laws, rules and regulations 

3. This term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and, unless extended by the 
parties in writing, expire six (6) months later. 

4. At the completion of construction of the Project, the City shall restore the surface and 
improvements on Grantor's Property to the condition reasonably existing at the time of this Agreement, 
excepting changes in grade and other modification on the Properly made to construct the Project. 

5. This Agreement only grants the City a license, not any interest or estate of any kind, nature or 
extent in the Property, The City does not and shall not claim any such interest or estate in the Property by 
virtue of entering into this Agreement or performing the Operations. 

6. The City shall not pennit any mechanic's or materialman's lien to be filed against the Property 
by reason of any labor, services, materials or equipment supplied in connection with the Operations. If any 
such lien is filed affecting the Property, the Grantor shall promptly h i s h  the City with notice of that lien 
and the City shall promptly cause the same to be discharged. 

7. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a partnership, joint venture, principal- 
agent relationship, or any other relationship between the parties other than as independent parties to a 
contract entered at anns' length. 

8. This Agreement expresses Ule complete intent and agreement of the parties. The provisions 
herein supersede all prior negotiations, conversations, and understandings concerning the matters addressed 
herein. All terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their respective 
successors and assigns, and cannot be amended, varied or waived by any oral representation or promise of 
any representative of the parties unless made in a subsequent writing that is signed by all parties. This 
Agreement may be executed (a) in counterparts, a complete set of which together shall constitute an 
original and (b) in duplicates, each of which shall constitute an original. Copies of this Agreement showing 
the signatures of the respective parties, whether produced by photographic, digital, computer, or other 
reproduction, may be used for all purposes as originals. 

(Signature Page Follows) 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be executed as of the date@) 
shown below. 

GRANTOR 

Signature; 
Printed Name: " /  7 7&.&3 
Date; I // "d$?- 1s  

GRANTOR 

Date; 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

By: Its; 

Date: 
City Clerk 



EXHIBIT A - DEPICTION OF LICENSE AREA 

See attached. 




	2015-May-11 Agenda
	1.  Women's Health Week Proclamation
	2.  Minutes
	3.  Park & Rec master plan study
	4.  Conditional use 73 Church Street
	5.  W Montcrest Dr license agreements



